
 

 

 
Date of despatch: Monday, 17 July 2017 

 
 
To the Members of Slough Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

You are summoned to attend a Meeting of the Council of this Borough which 
will be held in the The Curve - William Street, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 1XY  on  
Tuesday, 25th July, 2017 at 7.00 pm, when the business in the Agenda below is 
proposed to be transacted. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

ROGER PARKIN 
Interim Chief Executive 

 
PRAYERS 

AGENDA 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 

  PAGE 
 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary or other 
Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting must declare that interest and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Mayor will ask Members to confirm that they do not have a 
declarable interest. All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form detailing the nature 
of their interest. 

 

 

2.   To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council 
held on 18th May 2017 
 

1 - 14 



 
  PAGE 

 

 

3.   To receive the Mayor's Communications. 
 

- 

Public Questions 
 
4.   Questions from Electors under Procedure Rule 9. 

 
- 

Recommendations of Cabinet and Committees 
[Notification of Amendments required by 10 am on Monday 24th July 2017] 
 
5.   Recommendation of the Slough Wellbeing Board from it's 

meeting held on 10 May 2017 
 

15 - 34 

 • Annual Report 2016/17 
 

 

6.   Recommendation of the Cabinet from its meeting held on 
17th July 2017 
 

35 - 40 

 • Statutory Service Plans  
 

 

Officer Reports 
 
7.   Salt Hill Park  - Proposed Improvement Works 

 
41 - 46 

Motions 
 
8.   To consider Motions submitted under procedure Rule 14. 

 
47 - 48 

Member Questions 
 
9.   To note Questions from Members under Procedure Rule 10 

(as tabled). 
 

- 

 
 

Press and Public 
 

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of 
a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or 
recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been 
discussed with the Democratic Services Officer. 
 

 
 



 
 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
 

At the Annual Meeting of the Council for the Borough of Slough held at The Curve - 
William Street, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 1XY on Thursday, 18th May, 2017 at 7.00 pm 

 
Present:-  The Worshipful the Deputy Mayor (Shah), in the chair; Councillors Ajaib, 

Anderson, Bains, Bal, Bedi, Brooker, Carter, Chahal, Chaudhry, Cheema, 
Coad, Dar, Davis, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, M Holledge, N Holledge, Hussain, 
Mann, Matloob, Munawar, Nazir, Parmar, Plenty, Qaseem, Rana, Rasib, 
Sadiq, A Sandhu, R Sandhu, Sarfraz, Sharif, Smith, Sohal, Strutton, 
Swindlehurst and Wright 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillors Chohan, Arvind Dhaliwal, Pantelic, Usmani 
and Kelly 
 

1. To Elect the Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year  
 
The Chief Executive explained that in order to comply with legislative 
requirements that prevented anyone presiding over their own election and as it 
was anticipated that Councillor Shah would be nominated, it was necessary for 
Councillor Shah to leave the meeting whilst the meeting considered the election 
of Mayor for the Municipal Year 2017/18.    
 

(Councillor Shah left the meeting) 
 

Nominations were sought for election of Chair to preside over the election of 
Mayor. Councillor Munawar proposed and Councillor Hussain seconded 
Councillor Rasib and Councillor Rasib was duly elected to Chair the meeting with 
regard to this agenda item.  
 

(Councillor Rasib in the Chair) 
 

Councillor Rasib called for nominations for the office of Mayor of the Borough of 
Slough for the ensuing municipal year.  Councillor Rana proposed and Councillor 
Matloob seconded the nomination of Councillor Shah.   
 

The nomination was put to the vote and agreed unanimously.  
 

The Chief Executive declared that Councillor Shah was elected Mayor of the 
Borough of Slough for the 2017/18 municipal year. 
 

(Councillor Shah returned to the meeting) 
 

Councillor Shah, having made and signed the requisite declaration of 
acceptance of office, was thereupon installed in the Chair.   
 

(The Worshipful the Mayor, Councillor Shah, in the Chair) 
 

Resolved - That Councillor Shah be elected as Mayor for the Municipal Year 
2017/2018. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



 
2. To Elect the Deputy Mayor for the 2017/18 Municipal Year  

 
The Mayor called for nominations to the office of Deputy Mayor of the Borough of 
Slough for the 2017/18 municipal year.  Councillor Bal proposed and Councillor 
Hussain seconded the nomination of Councillor Sohal.   
 
The Mayor put the nomination to the vote which was agreed unanimously.  
 
The Mayor declared Councillor Sohal to elected Deputy Mayor of the Borough of 
Slough for the 2017/18 municipal year.  Councillor Sohal made and signed the 
requisite declaration of acceptance of Office of Deputy Mayor.   
 
Resolved - That Councillor Sohal be elected as Deputy Mayor of the Borough of 

Slough for the Municipal Year 2017/2018. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Bal declared that his daughter worked for Slough Borough Council. 
 

4. To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council held on 25th 
April 2017  
 
Resolved – That the minutes of the Council meeting held on 25th April 2017 be 

approved as a correct record.  
 

5. To receive the Mayor's Communications.  
 
The Mayor announced that Reverend Linda Hillier had agreed to continue to 
serve as the Mayor’s Chaplain and that she was looking forward to working with 
her during the forthcoming municipal year. 
 
Members were informed that the Mayor’s Reception would take place on 29th 
June 2017.   
 

6. Report of Returning Officer - By election 4th May  
 
Details of the By-Election held on 4th May 2017 were noted. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted.  
 

7. Review of Constitution  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hussain,  
Seconded by Councillor Munawar,  
 
“That  
 

Contract Procedure Rules – Part 4.6 
 
(a) That the proposed revisions to sections 16.46 – 16.47 and 16.48 – 16.67 of 

the Contract Procedure Rules as set out in Appendix 1 (A) be approved. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Arrangements for the Dismissal of Head of Paid Services, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
 
(b) That the following new committees and delegations be approved: 
 
1) That the existing Statutory Officers’ Disciplinary Panel be abolished. 

 
2) That an Investigating and Disciplinary Committee be established to deal 

with disciplinary matters relating to the relevant officers. This Committee to 
be a politically balanced committee of five Members only one of whom is to 
be a member of the Executive (not the Leader or Commissioner with 
responsibility for Human Resources or Finance). 

 
3) That an Appeals Committee be established  to deal with disciplinary 

matters short of dismissal relating to the relevant officers. This committee 
is to be a politically balanced committee of five Members only one of whom 
is to be a member of the Executive. (not the Leader or Commissioner with 
responsibility for Human Resources or Finance). 

 
4) That an Independent Panel comprising three people appointed under 

section 28 Localism Act 2011 be established to advise Council in the event 
of a recommendation from the Independent Disciplinary Committee to 
dismiss a relevant Officer. 

 
5) That Investigating and Disciplinary Committee have delegated 

responsibility for the suspension of “the relevant officers.” In the event of 
the need for urgency, this function to be delegated to the Monitoring Officer 
following consultation with the Leader in the case of the suspension of the 
Chief Executive and delegated to the Chief Executive following 
consultation with the Leader in the case of the suspension of the 
Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer. 

 
6) That In the case of a complaint against a relevant officer, the decision 

whether to refer the matter to the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 
will be delegated to the Monitoring Officer following consultation with the 
Leader in the case of a complaint against the Chief Executive and 
delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation with the Leader in 
the case of a complaint against the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance 
Officer. 

 
7) That the relevant officers will be given the same right to be accompanied at 

any disciplinary hearing as all Slough employees. This does not 
automatically include the right to be accompanied by a legal 
representative. 

 
8) That the Monitoring Officer  be tasked with producing a revised disciplinary 

procedure for the relevant officers based on the model procedure 
produced by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief 
Executives for approval by the Employment and Appeals Committee. 

 
9) That, thereafter the Employment and Appeals Committee will not have 

responsibility for the discipline of the relevant officers. 
 

Page 3



10) That the revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out at Appendix 
2 (C) be approved. 

 
Local Code of Conduct for Employees 
 
(c ) That the revised Local Code of Conduct for Employees as set out at 

Appendix 3(B)  be approved. 
 

Article 12 – Officer Roles and Statutory Functions 
 

(d) That the revised Article 12 as set out at Appendix 4 be approved. 
Review of Whistleblowing Policy 

 
(e) That the proposed revised Whistleblowing code as set out at Appendix 5 

be approved and that it be renamed ‘Confidential Whistleblowing Code’. 
 

Motions to Council 
 
(f) That Procedure Rule 14.1 be amended to read 

 
‘14.1 Notice 
a.  Except for motions which can be moved without notice under 

Rule15, written notice of every motion, signed by at least two 
Members, must be delivered to the Head of Democratic Services 
not later than noon on the ninth working day before the date of the 
meeting. At any one Ordinary meeting: 

• Only one motion may be proposed by any Political Group, 

• Or, in the case of no group, an individual member, 

• And one cross-party motion proposed by any member (on a 
first come first served basis). 

 
The wording of a motion can be submitted by email, and in this 
case, one member may submit the wording and another e mail in 
support of the motion must be received by the noon deadline. E 
mails must be from a source that validates the identity of the 
sender.’ 

 
(g)  That the Monitoring Officer and Head of Democratic Services be authorised 

to amend the current published Constitution to reflect Council Structures, 
legislative requirements and other administrative amendments as 
necessary.” 

 
The recommendations were put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved – 
 
Contract Procedure Rules – Part 4.6 
 
(a) That the proposed revisions to sections 16.46 – 16.47 and 16.48 – 16.67 of 

the Contract Procedure Rules as set out in Appendix 1 (A) be approved. 
 
Arrangements for the Dismissal of Head of Paid Services, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
 

Page 4



(b) That the following new committees and delegations be approved: 
 
1) That the existing Statutory Officers’ Disciplinary Panel be abolished. 

 
2) That an Investigating and Disciplinary Committee be established to deal 

with disciplinary matters relating to the relevant officers. This Committee to 
be a politically balanced committee of five Members only one of whom is to 
be a member of the Executive (not the Leader or Commissioner with 
responsibility for Human Resources or Finance). 

 
3) That an Appeals Committee be established  to deal with disciplinary 

matters short of dismissal relating to the relevant officers. This committee 
is to be a politically balanced committee of five Members only one of whom 
is to be a member of the Executive. (not the Leader or Commissioner with 
responsibility for Human Resources or Finance). 

 
4) That an Independent Panel comprising three people appointed under 

section 28 Localism Act 2011 be established to advise Council in the event 
of a recommendation from the Independent Disciplinary Committee to 
dismiss a relevant Officer. 

 
5) That Investigating and Disciplinary Committee have delegated 

responsibility for the suspension of “the relevant officers.” In the event of 
the need for urgency, this function to be delegated to the Monitoring Officer 
following consultation with the Leader in the case of the suspension of the 
Chief Executive and delegated to the Chief Executive following 
consultation with the Leader in the case of the suspension of the 
Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer. 

 
6) That In the case of a complaint against a relevant officer, the decision 

whether to refer the matter to the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 
will be delegated to the Monitoring Officer following consultation with the 
Leader in the case of a complaint against the Chief Executive and 
delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation with the Leader in 
the case of a complaint against the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance 
Officer. 

 
7) That the relevant officers will be given the same right to be accompanied at 

any disciplinary hearing as all Slough employees. This does not 
automatically include the right to be accompanied by a legal 
representative. 

 
8) That the Monitoring Officer  be tasked with producing a revised disciplinary 

procedure for the relevant officers based on the model procedure 
produced by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Chief 
Executives for approval by the Employment and Appeals Committee. 

 
9) That, thereafter the Employment and Appeals Committee will not have 

responsibility for the discipline of the relevant officers. 
 

10) That the revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out at Appendix 
2 (C) be approved. 

 
 

Page 5



Local Code of Conduct for Employees 
 
(c ) That the revised Local Code of Conduct for Employees as set out at 

Appendix 3(B)  be approved. 
 

Article 12 – Officer Roles and Statutory Functions 
 

(d) That the revised Article 12 as set out at Appendix 4 be approved. 
 

Review of Whistleblowing Policy 
 
(e) That the proposed revised Whistleblowing code as set out at Appendix 5 

be approved and that it be renamed ‘Confidential Whistleblowing Code’. 
 
Motions to Council 

 
(f) That Procedure Rule 14.1 be amended to read 
 

‘14.1 Notice 
a.  Except for motions which can be moved without notice under 

Rule15, written notice of every motion, signed by at least two 
Members, must be delivered to the Head of Democratic Services 
not later than noon on the ninth working day before the date of the 
meeting. At any one Ordinary meeting: 

• Only one motion may be proposed by any Political Group, 

• Or, in the case of no group, an individual member, 

• And one cross-party motion proposed by any member (on a 
first come first served basis). 

 
The wording of a motion can be submitted by email, and in this 
case, one member may submit the wording and another e mail in 
support of the motion must be received by the noon deadline. E 
mails must be from a source that validates the identity of the 
sender.’ 

 
(g)  That the Monitoring Officer and Head of Democratic Services be 

authorised to amend the current published Constitution to reflect Council 
Structures, legislative requirements and other administrative amendments 
as necessary. 

 
8. Localism Act 2011 - Dispensations  

 
It was moved by Councillor Munawar, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“That the grant of general dispensations, as set out in paragraph 5.1 of the 
report, be approved.” 
 
The recommendation was put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved -  That the grant of general dispensations, as set out in paragraph 5.1 

of the report, be approved. 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

9. Appointment of Committees and Allocation of Political Officer Support  
 
It was moved by Councillor Munawar,  
Seconded by Councillor Hussain,  
 

 

 

 
The recommendations were put to the vote and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolved  - 
 
(a) That Committees be appointed and seats thereon allocated to political 

groups in accordance with the rules of proportionality  
 
(b) That appointments be made to Committees as attached at Appendix 1. 
 
(c) That the report of the Leader on appointment of the Cabinet be received as 

attached at Appendix 1. 
 
(d) That the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Committees be appointed as attached 

in Appendix 1. 
 
(e) The allocation of Political Officer support to Political Groups be allocated as 

1FTE Group Political Officer to the Ruling Group and .5 FTE Group 
Political Officer to the main Opposition Group.  

 

(a) “That Committees be appointed and seats thereon allocated to political 
groups in accordance with the rules of proportionality. 

 
(b) That appointments be made to Committees in accordance with the 

nominations received from political groups, as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
(c) That the report of the Leader on appointment of the Deputy Leader and 

Cabinet Members and their portfolios be received, as set out in Appendix 
1.  

 
(d) That the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Committees be appointed as 

submitted in Appendix 1. 

(e)     The allocation of Political Officer support to Political Groups be allocated 
as 1FTE Group Political Officer to the Ruling Group and .5 FTE Group 
Political Officer to the main Opposition Group.  

(f) That appointments be made to quasi-judicial and other bodies as set out 
in Appendix 2, in accordance with the requirements of proportionality 
(where applicable) and group nominations.   
 

(g) That Mr Zafar Iqbal be appointed as a Co-Opted Member on the Audit 
and Corporate Governance Committee with effect from 19th May 2017 
until the Annual meeting of the Council in 2021.  
 

(h) That Members be appointed to the Investigating and Disciplinary 
Committee and Appeals Committee.” 

Page 7



(f) That appointments be made to quasi-judicial and other bodies as set out in 
attached Appendix 2. 

 
(g) That Mr Zafar Iqbal be appointed as a Co-Opted Member on the Audit and 

Corporate Governance Committee with effect from 19th May 2017 until the 
Annual meeting of the Council in 2021.  
 

(h) That Members be appointed to the Investigating and Disciplinary 
Committee and Appeals Committee. 
 

 
10. Appointments to Outside Bodies 2017/18  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Munawar, 
Seconded by Councillor Hussain, 
 
“That appointments be made to the Outside Bodies set out in the Appendices, for 
the Municipal year 2017/18”. 
 
The recommendations were put to the vote and carried unanimously.  
 
Resolved -  That appointments to Outside Bodies for the 2017/18 municipal 

year be as set out in Appendix 3 attached. 
 

Page 8



 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE   
Chair  - Councillor Cheema 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Parmar 
 
Councillors Coad, Davis, Arvind Dhaliwal, Qaseem, Rasib, A.Sandhu, Sohal, 
Strutton and Wright 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  
Chair – Councillor Dar 
Vice-Chair – Councillor M Holledge  
 
Councillors Ajaib, Bains, Chaudhry, Plenty, Rasib, Smith and Swindlehurst  
 
EMPLOYMENT & APPEALS COMMITTEE  
Chair – Councillor Sarfraz 
Vice-Chair – Councillor N Holledge 
 
Councillors Bains, Bedi, Brooker, M Holledge, Qaseem, R.Sandhu and Sharif 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
Chair – Councillor Sadiq 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Chahal 
 
Councillors Chaudhry, N Holledge, Parmar, Rana, Sarfraz, A.Sandhu and R 
Sandhu 
   
AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   
Chair – Councillor Chaudhry 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Chohan 
 

Councillors Cheema, Davies, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Sadiq and Swindlehurst  
 
Independent Co-Opted Members 
 
Mr Zafar Iqbal 
Mr A Sunderland  
Mr Roberts  
Vacancy 
 
Independent Person 
 
Dr Louis Lee 
 
Parish Council Representatives  
 
Councillor TBA (Britwell Parish Council)  
Councillor Raja Fayyaz (Wexham Court Parish Council)  
Councillor Raymond Jackson (Colnbrook with Poyle Parish Council)  

 
 

Page 9



Joint East Berkshire Health Overview Scrutiny Committee (3 total, 3 
deputies) 
Councillors Dar, Pantelic and Rana  
 
Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel (I - Chair of Employment & Appeal 
Committee) 
Councillor Sarfraz 
 
Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel  

Councillor Arvind Dhaliwal 
 
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (4:1 Only one Executive Member: 
Not Leader or Cabinet Member with responsibility for Human Resources or 
Finance) 
 
TBA 
 
Appeals Committee (4:1) (4:1 Only one Executive Member: Not Leader or 
Cabinet Member with responsibility for Human Resources or Finance) 
 
 
TBA 

Page 10



 

APPENDIX 2 
 

APPOINTMENTS TO QUASI-JUDICIAL AND OTHER BODIES 2017/18 
 
MEMBER PANEL ON THE CONSTITUTION   
 

Councillors Carter, Dar, Amarpreet Dhaliwal, Hussain, Matloob, Plenty and 
Sharif 
 
JOINT PARENTING PANEL (to include the Commissioner for Education and 
Children)  
 

Councillors Hussain (Chair), Bedi, Carter, Chahal, Mann, Pantelic and Sadiq 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINTS REVIEW PANEL (1 Member) (plus up 

to 3 deputies) 

 
Councillor Rasib (Cllrs Cheema, Dar and Qaseem)  
 
FOSTER PANEL (1 Member) 
 
Councillor Brooker 
 
SLOUGH WELLBEING BOARD 
 
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care 
 

Healthwatch representative 
 

Chief Executive Slough Children’s Service 
Trust 
 

Local Police Area Commander 
 

Chief Executive, Slough BC Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue 
Service representative 
 

Director of Adult Social Care 
 

Director of Children’s Services 

Strategic Director of Public Health  
for Berkshire 
 

Voluntary and Community Sector 
representative 
 

Slough Clinical Commissioning Group 
Representative 
 

NHS Commissioning Board 
representative 

Acute Sector Representative  Two Local Business Representatives 
 
STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION  
(5 Members (4:1) 
Committee 1 - Christian Denomination and other Faiths 
 
The Free Churches Sue Elbrow  (until 2020) 
Black Free Churches Vacancy 
The Roman Catholic Church Vacancy 
Hinduism Vacancy  

Islam Julie Siddiqi (until 2020) 

Page 11



 

Zubayr Abbas-Bowkan (until 2020) 
Waqar Bhatti (until 2017) 
Vacancy 

Judaism Vacancy 
Sikhism Hardip Singh Sohal (until 2020) 

Ashpreet Singh Nainu (until 2020) 
Baha’is Vacancy 

 

Committee 2 – The Church of England 
 

The Church of England The Rev Andrew Allen (until 2020) 
Christine Isles (until 2020) 
Andrea Sparrow (until 2020) 
Vacancy 
 

Committee 3 - Associations representing 
Teachers (6) 
 

 

National Union of Teachers Lynda Bussley (until 2017) 
VOICE (Formerly Professional Association of 
Teachers) 
 

Linda Lewis (until 2017) 
 

National Association of Head Teachers Vacancy 
Secondary Heads Association Vacancy 
National Association of School Masters/Union 
of Women Teachers 

Vacancy 
 

Association of Teachers and Lecturers Vacancy 
 
Committee 4 – Representatives of Local 
Authority (No Cabinet Member) 

Brooker, Parmar, Sarfarz, Sohal  
(Conservative Vacancy) 
 

SCHOOL ADMISSION APPEALS/EXCLUSION REVIEWS– POOL OF 
PANELLISTS   
(Education or Lay Member)  
Mrs S Baig (Education) 
Mr D Bryce (Lay) 
Mrs F Doran (Education) 
Mrs R Fawcett (Education) 
Mrs C George (Lay) 
Mr A Ghanie (Lay) 
Mr J Griffiths (Education) 
Mrs T Khan (Education) 
Mrs J Lloyd (Education) 
Mrs McAdam (Lay) 
Ms R Mohan (Education) 
Mrs D Mundi (Lay) 
Mrs S New (Lay ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mrs L Parminter (Lay) 
Mrs P Prescott (Education) 
Mrs S Punj (Lay) 
Mrs J Putnam (Education) 
Mrs D Sandhu (Lay) 
Mr R Saund (Lay) 
Mr S Sharma (Lay) 
Mrs L Simmons (Lay) 
Mrs L Smit (Lay) 
Mrs E Strange (Lay) 
Mr CH Stone (Education) 
Ms D Toomey (Education) 

 

Page 12



 

APPENDIX 3 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/18 

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  

 
LEVEL 1 - CORPORATE BODIES WHERE MEMBERS HAVE SIGNIFICANT LIABILITY AND/OR THE BODY HAS 
SIGNIFICANT RESPONSIBILITY FOR SERVICE DELIVERY 

 

OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENTS/ 
NOMINATIONS REQUIRED 

MEMBER(S) 
NOMINATED 

Berkshire Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust 

1 Member (preferably 
Cabinet Member for Health 

and Social Care) 

Hussain 
 

Berkshire Local Transport Body 
 

1 Member (preferably 
Cabinet Member for 

Transport and Highways) and  
1 named Deputy 

 

Matloob  
A Sandhu 

Board of Development Initiative 
Slough Housing Ltd (DISH) 

3 Members Ajaib 
Munawar 
A Sandhu 

 

Frimley Health NHS Foundation 
Trust 

1 Member (preferably 
Cabinet Member for Health 

and Social Care) 

Hussain 
 

Slough Local Asset Backed 
Vehicle (LABV) Board 
 

1 elected Member  
and 1 named Deputy 

Sohal 
A Sandhu (Deputy) 

Royal Berkshire Fire Authority 
 
(allowance payable 16/17 
 £2200 pa) 

 

3 Members  Cheema 
Rasib 

A Sandhu 

Safer Slough Partnership 
 

1 Member Arvind Dhaliwal 
 

Slough Children’s Partnership 
Board 

1 Member (Cabinet Member 
for Education and Children) 

Bedi 
 

Slough Local Safeguarding 
Children Board 

1 Member (Cabinet Member 
for Education and Children) 

 

Bedi 
 

Slough Safeguarding Adults 
Partnership Board 
 

2 Members (including the 
Cabinet Member for Health & 

Wellbeing) 

Hussain 
Coad  

 

Thames Valley Athletics 
Centre Management 
Committee 

1 (Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Leisure) 

+1 Deputy 

Bal 
 Parmar (Deputy ) 

Thames Valley Athletics 
Centre Trust 
 

1 (Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Leisure) 

+1 Deputy 

Bal 
Parmar (Deputy) 

Slough Children’s Services 
Trust Board  
(Remuneration rate of £200/day)  

1 Member Rasib 

Page 13



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/18 
APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  

 

LEVEL 2 - NO SIGNIFICANT LIABILITY/RESPONSIBILITY FOR SERVICE DELIVERY 
 

OUTSIDE BODY APPOINTMENTS/ 
NOMINATIONS REQUIRED 

 

MEMBER(S) 
NOMINATED 

Heathrow Airport Consultative 
Committee 
 

1 and 1 Deputy 
(Member or Officer – 

suggested Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Urban 

Renewal) 

Swindlehurst  
Ajaib (Deputy) 

James Elliman Trust  
 

No Nominations Required 
Until 2018 

- 

Parking & Traffic Regulation 
Outside London Joint Committee 
(PATROLJC) 

1 Member 
 

Matloob 
 

Slough Local Access Forum 2 Members 
 

Parmar 
Rasib 

Berkshire Community Foundation 
 

1 and 1 Deputy (Member or 
Officer)  

Sadiq 
Hussain (Deputy) 

Local Authorities’ Aircraft Noise 
Council 

3 (Member or Officer) Matloob 
2 Vacancies 

Groundwork South  
 

1 (Member or Officer) Sarfraz 

South East Employers 2 Members & 2 Deputies 
(Chair of Employment & 
Appeals Committee plus a 

Cabinet Member) 
(NB. Should not be 

employee of another local 
authority or official of any of 

the local government 
unions) 

Sharif 
Sarfraz 

(2 Deputy Vacancies) 
 

St Mary’s School Charity 
 

2 Members Brooker 
Plenty 

Standing Conference on 
Archives 
 

1 Member Rasib 

Strategic Aviation Special 
Interest Group (SASIG) 
 

1 Member (plus deputy) Matloob  
Bedi (Deputy) 

Slough Council for Voluntary 
Service 
 

1 Member + 1 Deputy  Sadiq 
Sohal (Deputy) 

Local Government Association  3 Members  
 

Hussain 
Munawar 
Sharif 

 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 7.00 pm and closed at 7.57 pm) 
 

Page 14



 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:    Council    DATE: 25th July 2017 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Dean Tyler, Head of Policy, Partnerships & Programmes 
(For all enquiries)   (01753) 875847 
 
WARD(S):    All 

 
PART I 

FOR ENDORSEMENT 
 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE SLOUGH WELLBEING BOARD FROM ITS MEETING 
HELD ON 10 MAY 2017: SLOUGH WELLBEING BOARD’S ANNUAL REPORT 
2016/17 
 

1.  Purpose of Report 
 
To present the Slough Wellbeing Board’s Annual Report for 2016/17 to Council for 
endorsement. 
 

2.  Recommendation 
 
The Council is requested to resolve that the Slough Wellbeing Board’s Annual Report 
for 2016/17 be endorsed. 
 

3.  The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy (SJWS) 2016 – 2020, the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the Five Year Plan 2017 - 2021 
 

3a.  Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy (SJWS) 2016 – 2020 Priorities 
 
The Annual Report 2016/17 relates to all aspects of the Slough Joint Wellbeing 
Strategy’s priorities as set out below: 
 

1. Protecting vulnerable children 
2. Increasing life expectancy by focusing on inequalities 
3. Improving mental health and wellbeing 
4. Housing 

 
3b. Five Year Plan 2017 – 2021 Outcomes 

 
The Annual Report 2016/17 also contributes to the delivery of five of the Five Year 
Plan’s outcomes, but in particular outcomes 1, 2 and 4: 
 

1. Our children and young people will have the best start in life and 
opportunities to give them positive lives   

2. Our people will become healthier and will manage their own health, care and 
support needs  

4. Our residents will have access to good quality homes   
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 15



4. Other Implications 
 

(a) Financial - There are no financial implications of proposed action. 
 
(b) Risk Management - There are no identified risks to the proposed action. 
 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications - There are no Human Rights 

Act implications to the proposed action. 
 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment - There is no requirement to complete an 

Equalities Impact Assessment in relation to this report. 
 

5. Supporting Information 
 

5.1 The Slough Wellbeing Board has a commitment to openness and transparency in the 
way that it carries out its work and is accountable to local people. This includes a 
commitment to annually review progress against the Board’s ambition to reduce health 
inequalities and improve health and wellbeing outcomes across the borough.    
 

5.2 The draft Annual Report at Appendix A sets out a review of the Wellbeing Board’s 
statutory responsibilities; key activities and achievements during 2016/17 and sets the 
context for its work during 2017/18. 
 

6. Comments of Other Committees 
 

6.1 The Slough Wellbeing Board considered the matters contained in this report at its 
meeting on 10 May and agreed to make the recommendation to Council to endorse the 
Annual Report.  
 

6.2 The Annual Report was also considered by Health Scrutiny Panel at its meeting on 27 
March. Panel Members asked for the Annual Report to include:  
 

• More evidence of the progress that has been made to achieve the vision and 
priorities set out in the refreshed wellbeing strategy;  

• More examples from partners about how their involvement in the Board has 
made a difference to the health and wellbeing of the people of Slough; and  

• A summary of what actions the Board (in collaboration with partners), 
intended to take to continue to deliver its priorities in 2017/18.  

 
6.3 All of these comments have been addressed in the attached draft.  

 
6.4 Health Scrutiny Panel also asked for some specific case studies to be developed and 

this will be done in the wider context of developing an evidence base that the Board can 
use to communicate its achievements to the people of Slough.  
 

7. Conclusion 
 
The Council is requested to endorse Slough Wellbeing Board’s Annual Report for 
2016/17. 
 

8. Appendices Attached 
 
A – Slough Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2016/17 

Page 16



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 1 

 

Appendix A 

 
 
 
 

Slough Wellbeing Board 

Annual Report 

2016/17 

Page 17



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 2 

 

 

Contents 

 

Foreword            2 

Section 1: Introduction         3 

Section 2: About the Slough Wellbeing Board     3 

Section 3: The Health and Wellbeing Context      5 

Section 4: Highlights of progress overseen by the Wellbeing Board  6 

Statutory responsibilities        6 

Priorities in the Joint Wellbeing Strategy 2016 – 2020    9 

Other achievements in 2016/17        16 

Section 5: Conclusion         17 

Appendix 1: Statutory responsibilities of the Slough Wellbeing Board  18 

Page 18



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 3 

 

 

Foreword  
 
Welcome to the second Annual Report of the Slough Wellbeing Board. This report 
covers the period from May 2016 to April 2017. 
 
The Board works towards achieving the best health and wellbeing outcomes for the 
residents of Slough. Our vision is to make Slough a place where “people are proud 
to live, where diversity is celebrated and where residents can lead safe, fulfilling, 
prosperous and healthy lives.” 
 
The issues of health and wellbeing affecting residents in the town are many and 
varied, however, to ensure the Board meets its aim it is important there is a clear 
focus with defined priorities and outcomes. The Board’s new Joint Wellbeing 
Strategy was published in September 2016 and sets out our agreed direction of 
travel, based on a refreshed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and with a renewed 
focus on the Board’s statutory and local strategic partnership functions. 
 
This report summarises the work that the Board has overseen to deliver our statutory 
responsibilities and the local priorities we have set in our Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
I would like to thank all Board members both past and present for their commitment 
to moving the town’s health and wellbeing agenda forward.  
 
I look forward to working with colleagues on this challenging agenda over the coming 
months to realise the opportunities we have in Slough and improve the health and 
wellbeing of our population. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Sabia Hussain 
Chair of Slough Wellbeing Board 
 

Section 1: Introduction 
 
Slough Wellbeing Board has a commitment to openness and transparency in the 
way that the Board carries out its work and is accountable to local people. This 
includes a commitment to annually review progress against the Board’s ambition to 
reduce health inequalities and improve health and wellbeing outcomes across the 
town. This annual report sets out a review of the Wellbeing Board’s progress over 
the last year and sets the context for the work of the Board during the year ahead. 
 

Section 2: About the Slough Wellbeing Board 
 
The Slough Wellbeing Board was formally established as a statutory committee of 
the council in April 2013; in accordance with the legislation passed in the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012. 

Page 19



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 4 

 

The purpose of the Slough Wellbeing Board is to:  

• Improve health and wellbeing  

• Reduce gaps in life expectancy across Slough  

• Focus on the wider determinants of health, such as education and training, 
housing, the economy and employment and  

• Commission better, more integrated and efficient health and social care 
services.  

 
The Board has a series of statutory responsibilities duties which are set out at 
Appendix 1.  
 
Membership  
 
In Slough we have taken a decision to widen membership beyond the statutory 
requirements. The Board has sought to ensure it is able to play a more strategic role 
so that it can have genuine influence and set direction. We have therefore called our 
overarching partnership the Slough Wellbeing Board rather than the Health and 
Wellbeing Board as our arrangements go beyond statutory requirements. 
 
The current membership (as of April 2017) is as follows:  
 
• Slough Borough Council 
• NHS 
• Slough Clinical Commissioning Group 
• Slough Children’s Services Trust 
• Healthwatch Slough 
• Thames Valley Police 
• Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service 
• Slough Council for Voluntary Service 
• Business sector 

 
Decision-making 
 
The Board is subject to the same openness and transparency rules as other 
committees of the Council. All meetings are held in public and all of its agendas, 
reports and decisions are available to view on the Council’s website at: 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=592 
 
The Board is also subject to scrutiny through the Council’s Health Scrutiny Panel. 
Information about this Committee is available to view on the Council’s website at: 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=105 
 
How the Wellbeing Board works with the key partnership groups in Slough  
 
The Board works closely with the following: 

• Health and Social Care Priority Delivery Group 
• Safer Slough Partnership 
• Slough’s Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
• Slough’s Adult Safeguarding Board  

 

Page 20



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 5 

 

Each of these partnerships contribute to the delivery of various aspects of the Slough 
Wellbeing Strategy. Updates on their work have been included in the Wellbeing 
Strategy Priorities section of this report.  
 
The Wellbeing Strategy 2016 – 2020 explains there is a wider partnership network 
operating across the town which the Board is seeking to better coordinate. To that 
end the Board held the first Slough Partnership Conference in September 2016 to 
strengthen partner relations and working. 
 

Section 3: The Health and Wellbeing Context  
 
According to the Public Health England Health Profile for Slough published in June 
2016 the health of people in Slough is varied compared with the England average. 
 

• Total life expectancy in Slough is improving: Men are expected to live on 
average until 78, while women are expected to live until 82. These rates are 
broadly similar to the average English rates of 79 for men and 83 for women. 

• However, healthy life expectancy across the town is worsening: women on 
average live the last 24 years of their life in poor health (compared to 20 years in 
England), while men live the last 18 years of life in poor health (compared to 16 
years in England). This means men live shorter lives on average than women in 
Slough, but they spend a higher proportion of their lives in good health. There 
are also large disparities between the most and least deprived parts of the town: 
Life expectancy is 4.5 years lower for men and 3.8 years lower for women in the 
most deprived areas of Slough, compared to the least deprived areas. 

• Whilst deprivation is lower than average, about 19.5% (6,600) children live in 
poverty. 

• Obesity in children in Year 6 is worse than the average for England. 

• Levels of GCSE attainment, breastfeeding and smoking at time of delivery are all 
better than the England average. 

• There are a significantly lower percentage of physically active adults in Slough 
than the regional and England averages.  

• The rate of smoking related deaths and estimated levels of adult smoking are 
also worse than the England average, as are the rates of TB and late diagnosis 
of HIV. 

• Diabetes is also significantly higher than the England average amongst adults. 

• The take up of cancer screening programmes and preventative programmes in 
Slough is poor. 

• Death rates for cardio vascular disease (CVD) in Slough are significantly higher 
that the rest of Berkshire, the south east and England– although death rates do 
appear to be falling at least as fast as the rest of the country.  

• The prevalence of mental health conditions is on the rise in Slough – however a 
significant number of people do not seek help/access services. There are also 
high levels of substance and alcohol misuse. 

• As people live longer the health and care needs of Slough’s older people are 
predicted to increase. 

• Social isolation, depression and dementia rates are also steadily increasing 
across the town. 

More information on the JSNA can be found here - www.slough.gov.uk 

Page 21



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 6 

 

Section 4: Highlights of progress overseen by the Wellbeing Board 
 
Between May 2016 and April 2017 the Board met six times in public. The section 
below sets out highlights of the work undertaken against the Board’s statutory 
responsibilities and against the four priorities of the Wellbeing Strategy 2016 – 2020. 
 
Statutory responsibilities 
 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
Over the course of the past four years work has been ongoing to refresh Slough’s 
JSNA; this included a light refresh of key data in 2016 and the document being 
published online. An easy to read summary version of the JSNA using infographics 
was also published and is available at: www.slough.gov.uk/council/joint-strategic-
needs-assessment/ . Work has also taken place on a number of more in depth 
needs assessments around a variety of topics including the recommissioning of 
major services such as Sexual Health, our Cardiovascular Prevention Programmes 
and the 0-19 Public Health Services. These findings were also taken into 
consideration when we refreshed our Joint Wellbeing Strategy for 2016 - 2020.  
 
Refreshing the Joint Wellbeing Strategy 
Following a number of workshops in 2016, the Board undertook a strategic review of 
its 2013 – 2016 Wellbeing Strategy and the priorities that underpinned it. This review 
set out to assess the progress of the Board over its three years in operation and to 
decide whether a new set of priorities were needed for the future. Having reviewed 
the evidence and following comments and feedback from Board members and key 
partners, four new priorities were agreed and have been used to develop the 
refreshed Wellbeing Strategy for 2016 – 2020:  
 
1. Protecting vulnerable children  
2. Increasing life expectancy by focusing on inequalities  
3. Improving mental health and wellbeing  
4. Housing  
 
For each of these priorities the Wellbeing Strategy explains why it is important; what 
the Board hopes to achieve by tackling it and what it and others will collectively do to 
address it in the year ahead. These priorities are not set in stone and we will review 
our approach annually and check whether there is a need to focus on different 
priorities for the next year. Progress towards the Board’s refreshed strategic priorities 
is outlined in the next section. More information on the Strategy can be found here - 
www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-and-policies/slough-joint-wellbeing-
strategy.aspx 
 
Slough Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG’s) Commissioning Intention 
Plans for 2017/18 and 2018/19 
In November 2016 the Board were given the opportunity to scrutinise Slough Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (CCG’s) Commissioning Intensions for 2017/18 and 
2018/19 for the town. The report outlined the approach the CCG was taking to 
develop the 2017/18 to 2018/19 Operating Plan, including the development of 
strategic priorities, and commissioning intentions at both a CCG and Sustainability 
and Transformation Plan (STP) level. It sets out, at a high level, the commissioning 

Page 22



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 7 

 

intentions of three East Berkshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) (including 
Slough’s) for the period April 2017 to March 2019, which were subsequently 
submitted to NHS England (NHSE) in December 2016 for approval. This plan will 
shortly be amended following further publication of the NHS England planning 
guidance and to reflect ongoing discussions with partners within the STP as the 
priorities and work streams emerge throughout 2017/18.  
 
In the meantime, work continues on the development of the CCG’s 5 Year Plan 
strategic priorities, which were shared with the Board in 2017. Progress against 
these plans will continue to be reported to the Board in accordance with is statutory 
responsibilities. More information on this Plan can be found here - 
www.sloughccg.nhs.uk/about-us/our-plans 
 
Integration / partnership working  
Throughout 2016/17 the Board has overseen the development and delivery of a 
number of ambitious plans for local health and social care integration which will 
underpin the town’s ambitions for the next five years. This has provided a unique 
opportunity for the Board to drive forward its ambitions around health and social care 
integration, and has required a new level of strategic leadership from the Board. 
Within this context, the Board’s headline achievements during 2016/17 have 
included the following: 
 
Playing a positive role in supporting the work of local partners to develop a 
local sustainability and transformation plan (STP) across the Frimley footprint 
In October 2014 NHS England published the Five Year Forward View setting out an 
ambitious change agenda for the NHS to ensure sustainability for the future.  
The Five Year Forward View looks to address: 

• The health and wellbeing gap: getting serious about prevention. 

• The care and quality gap: harnessing technology and reducing variation in the 
quality and safety of care. 

• The funding and efficiency gap: match reasonable funding levels with wide-
ranging system efficiencies 

The NHS planning guidance sets out the requirement to develop a five-year place 
based STP, supported by an annual operating plan for each Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG). The Frimley STP (which covers the work of five Health and Wellbeing 
Boards, including Slough) sets the direction for local areas to achieve the ambitions 
of the Five Year Forward View. It provides a clear and powerful vision of integrated 
health and care provision across the local NHS system. The work of local Health and 
Wellbeing Boards, their JSNA’s and Wellbeing strategies were central to the 
development of the Frimely STP and its priorities.   
The STP provides an important opportunity for improving health and care services 
across the footprint. Slough Wellbeing Board will give high priority to proposals to 
integrate health and social care services more closely and invest in prevention in the 
year ahead. Leadership and governance of the STP at a local level will also need to 
be strengthened: to date the focus has been on planning, but the real challenge now 
lays in turning these plans into a reality. More information on the STP can be found 
here – www.sloughccg.nhs.uk/about-us/sustainability-and-transformation-plan 
 
 

Page 23



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 8 

 

Supporting the implementation of the Better Care Fund and playing a strategic 
role in developing integrated health and care provision across Slough  
The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a £8.76 million pooled budget between the Council 
and Slough’s CCG. It is a government initiative to transform local health and social 
care services so that they work together to provide better joined up care and support. 
The aims and benefits of partners into this agreement are to: 

• Improve the quality and efficiency of the Services;  

• Meet the National Conditions and Local Objectives;  

• Make more effective use of resources through the establishment and 
maintenance of a pooled fund for revenue expenditure on the Services;  

• Reduce hospital admissions and delayed transfers of care; and  

• Protect social care services. 
 
Slough’s BCF scheme has had a positive impact on reducing demand in respect of 
admissions to hospital, care home admissions and discharge from hospital. But like 
the rest of the country demand for hospital services has meant an increase in overall 
admissions. Local activity will continue to be monitored by the BCF programme and 
the Wellbeing Board in the year ahead The Board will continue to receive regular 
updates on the delivery of the BCF at future meetings. More information on the BCF 
can be found here – www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/slough-better-care-fund.aspx 
 
Maintaining an up to date Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
The Board is responsible for the production of a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
(PNA) for Slough. A PNA sets out the needs for pharmaceutical services provided in 
the community by analysing health needs and current provision. The ultimate aim is 
to ensure that residents can access medicines, other products and services to help 
them live long and healthy lives. 
The current PNA was approved by Board in 2015 and runs until 2018. It will be 
renewed during the course of 2017/18 with an updated document taken to the Board 
for endorsement in early 2018. More information on the PNA can be found here - 
www.slough.gov.uk/council/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/pharmacy-needs-
assessment.aspx 
 
Contributing to the safeguarding of local people 
The Board received annual reports from both the Safeguarding Adults Board and the 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board. The key issues facing the Adult Safeguarding 
Board during this period included the identification and management of risk; working 
with people who self-neglect; mental capacity and the deprivation of liberty 
safeguards; and making safeguarding personal. Slough’s Local Children’s 
Safeguarding Board’s (LSCB’s) work programme during this period concentrated on 
implementing revised multi-agency threshold guidance for practitioners; introducing 
more effective processes on quality assurance; and taking action to strengthen the 
Board’s oversight of its multi-agency response to children at risk of exploitation. More 
information about the work of these boards can be found at 
www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-and-policies/slough-safeguarding-
adults-board.aspx and www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/annual-reports-and-business-plans.aspx respectively.  
 
 

Page 24



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 9 

 

Priorities in the Joint Wellbeing Strategy 2016 – 2020 
 
This section provides a summary of the progress that has been made to achieve the 
four strategic priorities of the Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
Priority 1: Protecting vulnerable children 
The vast majority of children in Slough lead safe healthy lives and are well cared for. 
However, as in all communities, a minority of families need additional support at 
times and a number of children require specific action by agencies to ensure that 
they do not suffer abuse or neglect.The SLCSB plays a key role in coordinating the 
work of a range of statutory partners and agencies in helping, protecting and caring 
for children in Slough. It also has a responsibility to identify blocks and barriers to 
success across the whole system.  
 
Key achievements: 

• Establishing a Multi-agency Joint Improvement Board to drive the delivery of the 
Ofsted Delivery Plan for improving children’s social care services in the borough. 
Key partnership achievements have included introducing a revised approach to 
corporate parenting with the new multi-agency Joint Parenting Panel that 
includes strong representation from the Reach Out! Group, establishing a Care 
Leavers Forum to ensure that the voice of young people is central to discussions 
about the services they receive and developing a multi-agency safeguarding hub 
(MASH) to significantly improve the ability to identify risk and allow for more 
focused and appropriate support to be provided for vulnerable children.  

• Changing the Council’s Constitution to enable Slough Borough Council and 
Slough Children’s Services Trust to chair the newly established Joint Parenting 
Panel, thereby enabling both to fulfil their statutory duties. Members now have 
sufficient and robust oversight (and understanding) of their corporate parenting 
role in Slough. 

• Taking steps to strengthen the corporate strategic arrangements underpinning 
the leaving care service by developing, in partnership with young people, a new 
pledge to care leavers. This was followed by a relaunch of the Corporate 
Parenting Strategy and action plan last summer. 

• Launching care leavers hubs and providing individual Personal Advisers with 
comprehensive bespoke training to improve local practice. 

• The Troubled Families programme, with a lead worker co-ordinating the multi-
agency teams, working towards agreed outcomes for identified families, saw 221 
families achieve significant and sustained progress against all of their issues 
(identified at assessment stage).  

• An award of £1.4m from the Department for Education to Slough Children’s Trust 
to introduce “enhanced hubs” and develop a new domestic abuse assessment 
response. These hubs will enable social workers, family support workers and the 
existing emergency duty team to provide sustained support to families outside 
traditional office hours.  

• Two Ofsted monitoring visits have focused on improvements to the front door 
and services for care leavers, finding promising progress in both areas. 

Other activity throughout 2016/17 included: 

• Building a strong partnership between the Board, the LSCB and the Trust to 
effectively safeguard Slough’s vulnerable children. The Trust’s Chief Executive 
now regularly attends meetings of the Wellbeing Board. 

Page 25



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 10 

 

• Developing a child sexual exploitation (CSE) strategy (which links to missing & 
child trafficking strategy and action plan 2015-17) and a multi-agency missing 
strategy and action plan 2015-17.  

• Developing and launching a preventing female genital mutilation (FGM) strategy 
and action plan which sets out our coordinated, partnership approach to tackling 
FGM Slough. 

• Since the summer of 2016, the Council and the Trust have together taken 
determined steps to raise their ambition for care leavers and embraced their role 
as corporate parents this has included promoting meaningful education, 
employment and training opportunities for young people. A new strategy is being 
developed to strengthen partnership arrangements in this area for both looked 
after children and care leavers.  

• Refreshing Slough’s Safeguarding People Protocol. This Protocol sets out the 
distinct roles and responsibilities of the Board, SLSCB, Slough Adults 
Safeguarding Board, Safer Slough Partnership, the Preventing Violent 
Extremism Group and the Joint Parenting Panel and the interrelationships 
between them in terms of safeguarding the people of Slough and the means by 
which effective co-ordination and coherence between the Boards will be 
secured. This Protocol can be found at www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-
plans-and-policies/slough-joint-wellbeing-strategy.aspx. 

• Delivering effective safeguarding awareness training to over 900 licensed 
hackney carriage and private hire drivers and operators taxi drivers across 
Slough. 

Next steps:  

• To develop and implement a new two year business plan for the LSCB. 

• To finalise and promote our comprehensive education, employment and training 
offer for our looked after children and care leavers. 

• To establish an Early Help Partnership Board and develop an early help strategy 
that sets out the partnerships expectations for delivering effective early help to all 
vulnerable children and young people living in Slough.  

• To launch a number of local area collaboratives and build closer local working 
between schools, nursery providers, children centres, health services, family 
support services, and other key partners. This will enable us to deliver more 
effective interventions that support families, improve children’s outcomes and 
reduce levels of inequality locally. 

• The priority for the children’s services improvement programme will be to fully 
embed and sustain the progress that has been made to date and drive further 
improvements to provide ‘good’ services for vulnerable children and young 
people in the borough. 

• To work with partners across the local health system to enable young people to 
access consistent health advice and support, including effective mental health 
services.  

 
Priority 2: Increasing life expectancy by focusing on inequalities  
This priority recognises the importance of lifestyle factors on health, and the rising 
rates of certain long term conditions (such as cardiovascular disease and diabetes) 
in Slough and which can impact on premature death rates. Tackling premature 
mortality (i.e. deaths that occur before 75 years) is a key driver for improving life 
expectancy and healthy life expectancy across the town and also in reducing health 

Page 26



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 11 

 

inequalities. In Slough, mortality rates from causes considered preventable are 
increasing in males (and are higher than the England average), while for females 
they are decreasing (and are similar to England average). Preventable deaths are 
also more common in men. 
 
In order to make a difference to residents’ health and their subsequent need for 
health care, the Board (in close collaboration with the Health and Social Care PDG) 
has started to identify and champion a range of approaches and initiatives to tackle 
the risk factors that drive ill health, promote positive actions that address entrenched 
habits and lifestyles and actively encourage individuals and communities to take 
more responsibility for their own health. 
 
Key achievements: 

• Life expectancy at birth (for men) increased from 75 to 79 years between 2003 
and 2015 (last reported figure) 

• 70% of residents thought their GP opening times were convenient and 80% were 
able to get an appointment to see or speak someone in 2015/16 (compared to 
64% and 76% in 2014/15). 

• 55% of residents felt supported to manage their own condition in 2015/16 
compared to 52% in the previous year. 

• The number of people managing their social care support via direct payments 
also increased from 200 in 2015 to 325 people in less than a year. These 
payments help people live independently with more choice and control over the 
care and the support they need. 

• There has been a noticeable drop in the rate of smoking prevalence in adults, 
from 22% to 18% between 2012 and 2015. Deaths from lung cancer between 
2007 and 2009 and 2012 and 2014 also fell from 72.6 to 59.5 per 100,000 (as 
did new registrations for lung cancer). 

• An increase in the number of health checks carried out each year is helping to 
improve early detection rates for certain conditions such as diabetes and high 
blood pressure. 

• More than 1000 people were invited to take part in the National Diabetes 
Prevention Programme’s 18 week free lifestyle courses, more than anywhere 
else in the country. 

• Slough went from 145th in the country for levels of activity to 95th - with 79 % of 
the population now taking part in regular healthy activities. 

Other activity throughout 2016/17 included: 

• Receiving the Annual Report 2016/17 from the Strategic Director of Public 
Health in March 2017. This report provided the Board with an expert, 
independent overview of the causes of early deaths (< 75 years) which can lead 
to inequalities in outcomes for some of our communities and made a number of 
recommendations for action based on evidence from national, regional and local 
sources. This report can be found at 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=592&MId=5683&Ver
=4 . 

• Restructuring the Health and Social Care Priority Delivery Group and its priorities 
so that the Group’s work programme and activities better align with, and helps 
support the delivery of the Wellbeing Board’s new Wellbeing Strategy. 

Page 27



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 12 

 

• Starting to develop our first integrated three year prevention strategy to improve 
the health and well-being of local people. The Care Act (2014) emphasises the 
importance of a shift in service provision towards preventive services, with the 
aim of preventing, reducing and delaying the need for care and this strategy will 
outline our approach. 

• Signing up the World Health Organisation’s 2016 antimicrobial resistance 
campaign to encourage best practice amongst the general public, health workers 
and policy makers and avoid the further emergence and spread of antibiotic 
resistance. 

• All GP surgeries in Slough hosted an open day in June 2016 to enable patients 
to share their views on how local health services could be improved. On the day 
over 1,200 patients completed a short health survey, the results of which are 
now being used to commission services that meet local needs. 

Next Steps: 

• To host a thematic debate on this priority in July 2017. 

• To finalise and implement prevention, drug and alcohol and diabetes prevention 
strategies for the town. 

• To make it easier for residents to access lifestyle improvement programmes and 
step down help from hospital easier through Cardiowellness4Slough.  

• Ensure this single point of access triages and refers people through a wellbeing 
hub to the right programmes for them, and reports on a common set of outcomes 
across a range of agencies. 

• Continue to support the implementation of Frimley STP, by providing a ‘confirm 
and challenge’ function, ensuring that the STP is aligned with the priorities set 
out in both the Wellbeing Strategy and the JSNA. The Board will also apply this 
‘confirm and challenge’ approach to the forthcoming implementation of the STP, 
particularly with regard to the pace and readiness of the individual programmes 
of work within it. 

• To address the issue and needs of rough sleepers (living on the streets) as part 
of a wider health prevention strategy. 

• To develop and implement a Low Emission Strategy that reduces emissions 
(mainly from vehicles) and improves local air quality.  

 
Priority 3: Improving mental health and wellbeing  
This priority responds to the high levels of poor mental health and wellbeing in the 
town that impacts on the general health and aspirations of individuals and families as 
well as the town as a as a whole. Only a small proportion of mental ill health is dealt 
with within specialist mental health services, so a range of preventative and 
alternative responses is vital, and these responses need to adapt to the needs of 
communities and Slough’s increasingly diverse population.  
The Board’s approach to improving mental health and wellbeing includes improving 
access to information, training and support on maintaining good mental health for 
workers, volunteers and communities; supporting and strengthening community 
assets to support self care (primary prevention) and ensuring service users are 
involved in planning their own care (tertiary prevention). 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 13 

 

Key achievements: 

• Providing bespoke mental health awareness training for around 6,000 Thames 
Valley Police staff, including police officers, PCSOs, station and duty staff and 
special constables. 

• Enrolling over 900 students on courses run by the Slough Recovery College in 
the past two years. These courses help to build confidence, life skills and 
resilience. A number of these students have also gone on to become peer 
mentors and are helping to provide much needed support for other people who 
are experiencing mental health difficulties in the community.  

• Introducing a new mental health street triage service (in collaboration with 
Berkshire Health Care Trust and Thames Valley Police) in June 2016. Under this 
scheme, qualified medical professionals attend all mental health related 
incidents that have been reported to the police. It ensures that those in crisis 
receive qualified medical help, while the officers present have access to on-the-
scene advice from an expert to make informed decisions. This approach is 
helping to significantly reduce the number of people being ‘sectioned’ under 
section 136 of the Mental help and means that those suffering a mental health 
crisis get the most appropriate care and treatment. The support of the Wellbeing 
Board was significant in achieving this piece of work.  

• Reducing emergency hospital admissions for intentional self-harm from 172.9 
per 100, 000 population in 2014 to 162.2 per 100, 000 population in 2015 (last 
recorded figure). 

Other activity throughout 2016/17 included:  

• Holding a thematic debate on this issue in January 2017. To read a summary of 
this discussion go to 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=592&MId=5661&Ver
=4 . 

• Supporting the launch of the campaign against living miserably (CALM) to 
reduce the risk of suicide among young men. 

• Supporting the development of the Slough Recovery College. 

• Supporting the development of Hope House, a sixteen bedded supported living 
unit in Slough (which has links to the Recovery College). 

• Recognising and acknowledging the vital role that peer mentors play in service 
delivery and in co-facilitating psycho-educational groups within the Recovery 
College. 

• Both the council’s adult and older person’s services have been proactive in 
developing carer’s forums across the locality. This work with carers remains a 
key area of interest for the Board and will continue in the year ahead. 

• Parity of Esteem funding led to the establishment of Consultant Lead Psychiatric 
Liaison Team at Wexham Park Hospital. 

Next steps: 

• Loneliness and isolation are a contributing factor to poor mental health problems. 
Research shows that 38% of people with dementia say that they are lonely, with 
a further 12% reporting they do not know if they are lonely. A third report that 
they had also lost friends after a diagnosis. GPs report that 1-5 elderly people a 
day visit their surgeries because they are lonely. The Board’s direction of travel 
for the year ahead will therefore include a strong focus on loneliness and 
isolation across all age groups in Slough. 

Page 29



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 14 

 

• Work has also begun to develop an overarching local suicide prevention plan for 
the town in line with Public Health England recommendations. The plan will 
identify opportunities and priorities for communication around mental health and 
wellbeing and will focus on suicide and self harm prevention. 

• Continue to train professionals working with children and young people in mental 
health awareness and first aid so they can identify the triggers earlier and 
prevent issues from escalating. 

• To improve the capacity of our Mental Health Urgent Care Services to deal with 
crises, including EIP and CAMHS. 

• Dual Diagnosis remains a key area for future development as we forge closer 
links with local community services and NHS. 

• Following the recruitment of a Specialist Dual Diagnosis Lead (at Slough CMHT) 
a new assessment process for all patients will be trialled in 2017. 

• To refresh the town’s Dementia strategy. 

• To take a ‘housing first’ approach to meeting the future needs (rather than larger 
hostel type developments) of people with mental health problems (to be pursed 
as part of the council’s forthcoming housing strategy). 

• To develop a jointly funded and integrated in-house resource to help sustain 
individuals in their own homes and to meet their wider needs (as part of the 
council’s forthcoming homelessness prevention strategy). If homelessness 
cannot be prevented, to work with individuals to ensure that appropriate support 
measures, including those around mental health and addiction, are in place to 
help resettle them successfully.  

 
Priority 4: Housing  
There is a close relationship between poor housing and poor health. Poor housing 
can also have a negative impact on a wider range of physical and mental health 
problems. Today most of the town’s housing can be regarded as having good 
standards of sanitation, weatherproofing, ventilation and repair. However nationally it 
has been estimated that approx. 70% of negative health impacts occurs as a direct 
consequence of factors outside the formal health service. Housing improvements are 
therefore accepted as one of the most critical of these impacts. However, no one 
organisation has it within its gift to provide a whole solution.  
Improving the health and social well being of our communities will take time and 
require an increased level of partnership working, not only with the health sector but 
also with private developers, statutory agencies, the voluntary and community 
sector, housing associations, our partners and residents themselves, if we are to 
deliver a range of housing and support services that meet the ambition and needs of 
our local people. 
 
Key achievements: 

• Playing a strategic role in helping to shape the future direction of the town’s 
forthcoming housing strategy. This strategy will set out the (council’s) vision and 
priorities to provide sufficient good quality housing to rent and buy in Slough over 
the next five years.  

• Hosting a themed discussion on this issue at its meeting in September 2016. At 
this meeting the Board made a number of important recommendations in relation 
to developing Slough’s housing supply, including specific initiatives to enable 
independent living with appropriate support for a range of vulnerable groups 

Page 30



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 15 

 

(including those living with long term health conditions, elderly people, care 
leavers, people with mental illnesses and those with physical, sensory or 
learning disabilities) and key workers. The new (housing) strategy will be a key 
element in achieving that independence. To read a summary of this discussion 
go to 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=592&MId=5616&Ver
=4 . 

• Establishing Slough Urban Renewal (SUR), a joint venture between the Council 
and Morgan Sindall (MSIL) to develop new homes for both sale and rent across 
the town.  

• Creating two new subsidiary housing companies (Herschel Homes and James 
Elliman Homes) to provide better more affordable homes for homeless 
households and key workers.  

• Completing regeneration projects in Britwell and Milestone Housing on Ledgers 
Road and bringing seven long-term empty derelict properties back into use. 

• Agreeing plans for 240 new houses (and leisure faculties) at the Slough Canal 
Basin. 

• Reducing the number of households in bed and breakfast accommodation, from 
46 in September 2015 to 21 a year later. By January 2017 the council had 
completely eliminated the use of bed and breakfast accommodation for families. 

• Stabilizing the number of families in temporary accommodation at 316 as at 
March 2017. 

Other activity throughout 2016/17 included: 

• Receiving a presentation on how the town’s new Local Plan 2016-2036 ‘issues 
and options’ document is being developed and how the council will use this 
document to make important decisions about future planning applications and 
development projects across the town.  

• The Board were specifically consulted on and provided valuable insight into what 
it thought were the major challenges facing the town and what the Local Plan 
should do to address them. 

Next steps: 

• To build on health and disability housing needs sections of the JSNA and 
undertake further detailed work with partners and stakeholders to examine what 
housing options that are required to best meet current and future demand and 
changing needs. 

• To start new homes construction on a series of small sites to provide much 
needed council housing for people on the waiting list. 

• Improve partnership working, particularly with the Council’s Adult Services and, 
Public Health teams and Slough CCG, to develop services that allow elderly and 
disabled residents to live independently in their home and reduce the impact of 
poor housing on residents’ health. 

• To support the development of new delivery partnerships with the Trust, Public 
Health and Adult Social Care teams to maximize opportunities for specialist and 
alternative accommodation within Slough. 

• In collaboration with the Trust, ensure there is an adequate supply of safe and 
secure accommodation for care leavers and a clear housing pathway. 

• Work with the health sector and other agencies to review the council’s Housing 
Related Support services and agree the best use of resources to meet joint 
strategic objectives.  

Page 31



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 16 

 

• Support the development of a new Affordable Housing Policy, including the 
introduction of a “Slough Living Rent”.  

• Work with the health sector to monitor and address the health and care needs of 
vulnerable homeless people placed in Slough by other Local Authorities.   

• Support the review of the Home Improvement Agency services (with the Adult 
Social Care team as commissioners), to agree the best service model and 
structure going forward to meet joint prevention objectives.  

• Produce a plan to improve housing opportunities for key workers and develop a 
preventing homelessness strategy, older person’s housing strategy and tenancy 
strategy in collaboration with clients, landlords, the voluntary sector and other 
partner agencies (once the new housing strategy has been finalised). 

• Agree a new repairs, maintenance and investment contract for council homes 
that improve services and value for money for council tenants and leaseholders. 

• Review the council’s allocation scheme to ensure full account is taken of the 
needs of vulnerable people. 

• To develop more specialist supported housing provision (including ensuring 
government grant opportunities are fully utilised) for disabled people in Slough. 

 
Other achievements in 2016/17 included: 

• Publishing a Forward Work Plan online to encourage better coordination of 
issues between the Board and other partnerships / Committees.  

• Reorganising the Board’s agendas so that more time is now provided for those 
items requiring discussion and decision and less time for those items which are 
for approval and information; 

• Hosting its first annual Partnership Conference at The Curve. The conference, 
which is a component of the Board’s strategic objective to build a strong local 
partnership through collaborations with Slough’s multi-sector partners, provided 
participants with an opportunity to come together and receive information about 
the new Wellbeing Strategy and discuss recent developments, challenges and 
opportunities in Slough across the health and wellbeing sector. The event 
attracted over 60 participants that included a diverse group of community-based, 
nonprofit, public and private sector representatives. To read a summary of this 
event go to 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=592&MId=5616&Ver
=4. A second conference will be held in September 2017 

• Hosting a themed discussion on Engaging People at the Board’s November 
meeting to look at public and community involvement in the work of the Board. 
The workshop represented an indispensable first step in understanding, from the 
standpoint of participants, both the problems and priorities for action within their 
target communities. Progress was also made in developing a better 
understanding of who the Board’s legitimate ‘stakeholders’ might be, so that we 
can start to initiate an honest dialogue with these groups, identify the resources 
and skills that exist within the community and build community confidence and 
capacity. To read a summary of this discussion go to 
www.slough.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=592&MId=5635&Ver
=4 . 

• Refreshing its Overarching Information Sharing Protocol to ensure information is 
shared consistently and securely between Board members. More information on 

Page 32



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 17 

 

this Protocol can be found at www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-and-
policies/slough-joint-wellbeing-strategy.aspx  

• Publishing a Protocol which sets out the respective roles and statutory 
responsibilities of Board, Healthwatch Slough and the council’s Health Scrutiny 
Panel and provides a framework for handling key issues and information 
between these Committees in light of their individual functions. More information 
on this Protocol can be found at www.slough.gov.uk/council/strategies-plans-
and-policies/slough-joint-wellbeing-strategy.aspx 

• Receiving a number of reports from Healthwatch Slough, including: 
o Healthwatch Slough Operating Plan 2016/17 
o The use of the Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund, to increase access to extended 

hours appointments 
o The Use of Slough Walk In Centre at Upton Hospital by vulnerable people  
o The Big Food Fight – A Children’s Quiz –young people’s understanding and 

experience of health, wellbeing and related local services. 
o Quarterly Intelligence-Reports for 2016 
o Healthwatch Slough Annual Report 2015/16 

Going forward it is proposed that the Wellbeing Board continue to receive and 
discuss Healthwatch Slough reports with the recommendations and progress 
updates being considered by the Health and Social Care Priority Delivery Group.  
 

Section 5: Conclusion 
 
This Annual Report summarises the work of the Board to improve health and 
wellbeing outcomes for people living in Slough. The approach is one founded on 
strong partnership working and an understanding that the challenges facing health 
and social care are too great for any single organisation to tackle alone.  
 
Members of the Board are committed to working together to ensure Slough has the 
right strategic plans and partnership arrangements to face these challenges. 
 
During the course of 2017/18 the Board will continue to strengthen its partnership 
structures to build on the work that has been done to date to improve the health and 
wellbeing of local people. The Board will use the findings of this Annual Report to 
review progress against the priorities in the Wellbeing Strategy and check that these 
remain the right areas of focus for the year ahead, refreshing these if the data and 
local context point to evidence for this. The Slough Wellbeing Board will consult on 
any changes that are required and will invite input from partners and stakeholders at 
the annual partnership event to be held in September 2017. 
 
APPENDIX 1: The Wellbeing Board has the following statutory responsibilities 
(as set out in the Health and Social Care Act 2012): 
 

• To prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) of the 
health needs of the people of Slough. 

• To prepare and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) for 
Slough. 

• To give its opinion to the Slough Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG) as to 
whether their Commissioning Plans adequately reflect the current JSNA and 
JHWS. 

Page 33



 
 

SWB Annual Report 2016/17 Page 18 

 

• To comment on sections of the CCG’s Annual Report which describe the extent 
of the CCG’s contribution to the delivery of the JHWS. 

• To give its opinion, when requested by the NHS Commissioning Board, on the 
CCG’s level of engagement with the Board, and on the JSNA and the JHWS. 

• To encourage integrated partnership working between organisations that plan 
and deliver health and/or social care services for local people in the area. 

• To work with partners to identify opportunities for future joint commissioning.  

• To lead on the signing off of the Better Care Fund Plan (BCF). 

• To publish and maintain a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA). 

• To give its opinion to the Council on whether it is discharging its duty to have 
regard to any JSNA and JHWS prepared in the exercise of its functions. 

• To ensure that strategic issues arising from Slough’s Adult Safeguarding Board 
and Local Safeguarding Children’s Board inform the work of the Board. 

• To receive the annual reports from the Slough’s Adult Safeguarding Board and 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board and ensure that partners respond to issues 
pertinent to the Board. 

• To exercise any Council function which the Council delegates to it. 
 

Page 34



 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:                Council  DATE: 25th July 2017 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Nick Pontone, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
(For All Enquiries)      (01753) 875120 

 
WARD(S): All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CABINET FROM ITS MEETING HELD ON 17TH JULY 
2017 
 

STATUTORY SERVICE PLANS  
 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

 To seek endorsement for Statutory Service Plans (the Plans) in relation to: 
  

• Food Safety Service 

• Health and Safety  Service 

• Trading Standards Service 
 
in accordance with the requirements laid down by The Food Standards Agency 
(FSA) The Health & Safety Executive (HSE), the Department of Business Skills and 
Innovation (BIS) and other external agencies.  

 
2 Recommendation 
 

That the Statutory Service Plans in relation to the Food Safety, Health & Safety and 
Trading Standards Services be endorsed. 
 

3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.    Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities –  

 
Improving mental health and wellbeing 

 

• Supporting and encouraging all the cuisines in Slough to provide safe food 
through inspections and interventions and the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 
(FHRS) 

• Catering for Health award supporting businesses to provide choices, including 
the safe importation of ethnic foods. 

• Reducing risks in the work place with investigations, interventions and specific 
projects based upon Sloughs needs such as Legionella control,  

• Increasing awareness of food labelling, allergens and healthy eating, and in 
doing so contribute to reducing obesity rates in Slough. 

• Staff being trained on the Care Act and their responsibility under that legislation 
to be aware of safeguarding issues and reporting lines.  

• Working in conjunction and in support of Adult Social Care when our Services 
come across vulnerable people, particularly where they are victims of rogue 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 35



 

traders, scams and financial fraud. e.g.  Loan Shark project and Operation Rogue 
Trader/Liberal. 

• To promote schemes which help the community to help themselves, such as 
Friends against Scams, Mail Marshals and Adopt a Post Office.  

• Safeguarding migrant and other vulnerable workers, including Modern Slavery 
issues and CSE awareness. 
 

Protecting Vulnerable Children 
 

• Underage sales education and enforcement; projects in partnership with other 
stakeholders to reduce the incidence of violence in retail and licensed premises 
eg, Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP) and supporting outcomes from the 
Local Alcohol Action Area (LAAA). 

• Adopting professional curiosity in all that we do to ensure we are competent to 
recognise and identify child safeguarding issues.  

• Maintaining professional curiosity among staff and keeping their awareness up to 
date on issues such as, Modern Slavery and Child Sexual Exploitation.  
 

Housing 
 

• Enforcing the Redress Schemes for Lettings Agency Work and Property 
Management Work (Requirement to Belong to a Scheme etc)(England) Order 
2014 which requires all lettings agents and property managers in England to 
belong to a Government approved redress scheme from 1 October 2014 

 
3b Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 
 These statutory service plans identify positive impacts towards all the 5 year  

Plan Outcomes, which is detailed in the individual action plans, and in particular:  
 

• Our children and young people will have the best start in life and opportunities to 
give them positive lives….  

• Our people will become healthier and will manage their own health, care and 
support needs.  

• Slough will be an attractive place where people choose to live, work and visit. 

• Slough will attract, retain and grow businesses and investment to provide jobs 
and opportunities for our residents 

 
The statutory plans also focus on developing entrepreneurial skills in the teams and 
commercialisation skills as a tool to maximise income whilst also supporting the 
council’s digital transformation by promoting agile front line working and channel shift 
to encourage better use of the council’s website. 
 

4 Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial 
 
It is anticipated that the plans will be implemented within existing resources. 
However, the situation will be closely monitored as unplanned reactive pressures, 
such as major investigations, will have resourcing implications which will be reported 
to members for their consideration.  
 

Page 36



 

Costs recovered from Primary Authority and other chargeable work will be used to 
help off set the cost of service delivery and contribute to the council’s savings targets 
as appropriate.  

 
(b) Risk Management  

 

Risk Mitigating action Opportunities 

Legal None  

Property None  

Human Rights None Protection of worker and 
consumer rights in Slough 

Health and Safety None for SBC workforce. 
Risk Assessments are in 
place for all officer activities 

Supporting businesses in 
Slough toward sensible 
risk management, 
enhancing health & safety 
conditions in Slough. 

Employment Issues None Costs recovered from 
Primary Authority can 
offset service delivery 
costs helping to maintain a 
flexible and resilient 
workforce to meet Sloughs 
needs 

Equalities Issues None. Equality Impact 
Assessments have been 
completed 

The work of the teams 
actively supports equality 
in the work place for 
example, with disability 
access and awareness 
issues. 

Community Support None The teams engage in 
neighbourhood and 
Community action events 

Communications None The Teams engage with 
businesses and residents 
on a daily basis Regular 
press releases and 
newsletters are issued,  
we sometimes undertake 
interviews on local Radio 
stations 

Community Safety None Underage sales, rogue 
traders, loan sharks 
activities support the Safer 
Slough Partnership 
priorities. 

Financial  Risk from complex criminal 
investigations or disease 
outbreaks that demand 
considerable officer time 
resulting in pressure upon 
resources to complete 
statutory work within 
timescales set by national 

The income from Primary 
Authority work and further 
commercialisation of 
services can be used to 
offset cost of service 
delivery 
 

Page 37



 

enforcement bodies. 
Increased costs from legal 
fees not fully recovered. 
Mitigated by the re-
prioritisation of resources 
where possible. 

Timetable for delivery Risk from complex criminal 
investigations or disease 
outbreaks that demand 
considerable officer time 
resulting in pressure upon 
resources to complete 
statutory work. Mitigated by 
the re-prioritisation of 
resources where possible. 

 

Project Capacity Risk from complex criminal 
investigations that demand 
considerable officer time 
resulting in pressure upon 
resources to complete 
statutory work. Mitigated by 
the re-prioritisation of 
resources where possible. 
 

 

Other 
Failure to endorse the 
SDPs 

Serious risk to delivery of 
statutory obligations, failure 
to delivery on projects that 
impact positively on health 
& well being issues in 
Slough. Potential risk to 
Slough Borough Council 
reputation. 

 

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications 
 
There are no Human Rights Act Implications; the work detailed in the Plans is based 
upon UK and European legislation that has already been assessed in terms of the 
Human Rights Act Implications 

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment  
 
Equalities Impact assessments have been completed on key policies contained 
within the Plans. However, the work detailed in the Plans is based upon UK and 
European legislation that has already been assessed in terms of Equality Impact 
Assessment. 

 
5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 National guidance on the delivery of the Authority’s enforcement activities is issued 

by The Food Standards Agency, the Health and Safety Executive and the 
Department for Businesses, Innovation and Skills; setting out standards for service 
provision, monitoring and auditing arrangements, in order to ensure that local 

Page 38



 

enforcement activities are undertaken in a robust, fair and consistent manner in line 
with the Regulators Code and our Enforcement Policy. 

 
5.2 The Plans are an important part of the process to ensure national priorities and 

standards are addressed and delivered to meet local needs effectively; they will be 
reported to and scrutinised by the national agencies. These Plans, which are 
required to be reviewed and updated annually, will  

 

• focus on local priorities and the needs of our local community 

• provide an essential link with financial planning 

• set objectives for the future, and identify major issues that cross service 
boundaries;  

• and provide a means of managing performance and making performance 
comparisons   

 
5.3 Local authorities are required to include in their Statutory Service Plans 
 

• Information about the services they provide 

• the means by which they will provide those services  

• the means by which they will set/monitor performance targets and 
standards 

• a review of performance against proposed targets  
 
5.4 Commercialisation of the services has allowed for increased cost recovery activities 

which have helped to off set the cost of service delivery particularly with Primary 
Authority (PA) work. PA is a statutory scheme which enables contractual partnerships 
to be formed between business and local authorities. The aim being to streamline 
and simplify the national regulatory compliance demands on local businesses in 
relation to trading standards, food and health & safety matters. We have now secured 
39 successful contracts with national and international businesses such as; Reckitt 
Benkiser, Mars, Telefonica (o2), Superdrug, Wyevale Garden Centres, Furniture 
Village and Burger King. It is our intention to enhance the entrepreneurial skills of the 
teams and further develop commercialisation of the services over the next year. 

 
5.5 For the future Statutory Service Delivery will continue to focus very specifically upon 

areas of high risk whist aiming to reduce the regulatory burden on compliant 
business: continuing to make the best use of the resources we have available and 
ensuring positive outcomes and value for money, whilst supporting business growth. 

 
6 Comments of Other Committees 

 
Cabinet will consider the Statutory Service Plans at its meeting on 17th July 2017. 
Any comments raised will be reported at the Council meeting. 

 
7 Conclusion 
 

The proposed Plans illustrate our commitment to continuous improvement and 
accountability, whilst responding flexibly to ongoing changes in both the regulatory 
and consumer landscapes nationally and locally.  They also show how the Council 
has successfully adopted a balance of techniques and approaches to support local 
businesses, drive up compliance by enabling businesses to access information & 
advice more effectively. In addition, the plans enhance consumer protection and 
promote, with our partners, safety and wellbeing in the workplace and our 

Page 39



 

communities whilst off-setting the cost of delivery by developing further the 
commercialisation of services where appropriate. 
 
It is clearly illustrated within the Plans how our work contributes significantly towards 
supporting all of the outcomes of the 5 Year Plan and the Slough Joint Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

 
8 Appendices (Separate Document Pack) 
 

a. Food Safety & Standards Service Delivery Plan 2017/18 
b. Health & Safety Service Delivery Plan 2017/18 
c. Trading Standards Service Delivery Plan 2017/18 

 
9 Background Papers 
 

‘1’   Food Standards Agency Code of Practice (Revised April 2015) 
‘2’  National Local Authority Code, Health & Safety at Work. (2013) 

           ‘3’   Primary Authority Handbook. Local Better Regulation Office ( 2016) 
 ‘4’  The Consumer Protection & Business Compliance Enforcement Policy 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

  

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:           Council       DATE:  25th July 2017 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Alison Hibbert, Leisure Services Manager        
 
(For all enquiries) (01753) 875896 
 
WARD(S): All   

 
PART I  

FOR DECISION 
 

SALT HILL PARK – PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT WORKS  
 

1  Purpose of Report 
 

To advise the Council of proposed improvement works at Salt Hill Park, which will 
require consent from the trustees of the Salt Hill Playing Fields. 
 
Salt Hill Playing Fields is a charity registered with the Charity Commission under 
charity registration number 215385. The playing fields are held in trust for the 
benefit of the inhabitants of the district of the Council and the Members of the  
Council are the  trustees of the Charity. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 

  Members of Slough Borough Council in their capacity as Trustees of the Salt Hill 
Playing Fields are requested to approve the improvement works to the land of the 
Trust comprising the access to the playing fields off the main Bath Road entrance  

  (shown on the plan at Appendix 1) and to authorise any applications for the consent 
of the Charity Commission which may be required in connection with such works. 

 
3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year     Plan 
 
3a Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

 
All the actions within the Leisure Strategy and the refurbishment work proposals to 
the Salt Hill leisure facility will contribute towards achieving the overarching vision of 
the Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy and will make significant contributions 
specifically to the health, wellbeing and safer Slough themes. 

 
• Health and Wellbeing.  Cabinet in July 2014 approved a strategy for leisure, 

with the overarching aim to ”enhance the health and wellbeing of Slough 
residents by ensuring leisure activity is adopted as a habit for life for all – 
more people, more active, more often”.  The causal link between physical 
activity and overall health indicators is clear, particularly for obesity and heart 
disease, which are high priorities for Slough. 

• Safer Slough.  The opportunity to participate in shared leisure activities 
makes a positive contribution to community cohesion and interaction for all 
members of the varied and diverse community in Slough. 

• Regeneration and environment.  Leisure facilities contribute to the quality 
of the environment of the town.  They provide opportunities to regenerate 
specific sites and local communities. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 41



 

  

 
Cross-Cutting themes: 
Good leisure facilities can improve the image of the town, making Slough a 
destination for sport and physical activity for local residents who will take a pride in 
the promotion of their use.  
 
The leisure strategy and improved leisure facilities contribute towards addressing key 
priorities as set out in the JSNA including childhood obesity, positive activities for 
young people and cardio vascular disease. 

 
3b. Five Year Plan Outcomes 
 

• Slough will be the premier location in the south east for businesses of all sizes to 
locate, start, grow, and stay – good quality, accessible leisure facilities are 
attractive to employers to ensure a healthy workforce which is imperative for a 
businesses success. 

• There will be more homes in the borough, with quality improving across all 
tenures to support our ambition for Slough – the future development of leisure 
facilities on chosen sites in the town will compliment planned housing 
developments and assist the organisational aim of maximising the value of 
assets. 

• Slough will be one of the safest places in the Thames Valley – leisure activity 
can be used as a diversionary activity for young people who could be at risk of 
anti-social behaviour. 

• More people will take responsibility and manage their own health, care and 
support needs – accessible leisure opportunities in the right location will 
enhance the health and wellbeing of all individuals living in Slough. 

• Children and young people in Slough will be healthy, resilient and have positive 
life chances – improved leisure facilities will provide children and young people 
with wider opportunities for participation in sport and physical activity which 
results in greater physical and mental wellbeing. The proximity of the proposed 
new facilities to educational establishments will maximise use and allow the 
Council to realise corporate aims. 

• The Council’s income and the value of its assets will be maximised through 
capital development and improvements to its leisure 
 

4.  Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial  
 
   Cabinet agreed on 19 December 2016 to fund the proposed improvements to the 
Salt Hill leisure facility.  As part of this development there is a requirement to look at 
a more long term solution to car parking. It is anticipated that additional car parking 
will be provided in an area of the park which is not trust land. A bid to cover the 
costs of these works will be made to capital strategy group at a later stage. 

 
(b) Risk Management  
 
The proposed improvement works to the main entrance and road widening to the 
main access routes to the playing fields’ car parking areas are essential to meet with 
safety requirements; protecting users of the park facilities. The improvement works 
will also enhance the park but they affect trust land. 
 
 

Page 42



 

  

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  

 
Any development works within the boundary of the trust land requires approval of the 
Trustees of Salt Hill Playing Fields. The proposed works to the main leisure facility 
falls outside of the trust land. The required road widening and access improvements 
fall within the land owned by the Trust. See appendix 1. 
 
Any decision made by the Trust which is contrary to the objects of the Trust will 
require approval from the Charity Commission 
 
 Members of the council act collectively as the trustees of the Salt Hill Playing Fields. 
As charitable trustees, the members must act independently from the policies, 
decisions and interests of the council. The members must take all decisions based on 
what is in the best interests of the Trust when acting in their capacity as trustees.  

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   

 
An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken in respect to the proposed 
development of Salt Hill leisure facility. 
 

5. Supporting and Legal Information 
 
5.1 Salt Hill Park was conveyed to the council on 13th August 1906 by James Elliman.  

It is registered at the Land Registry under title number BK428248.   The 
Conveyance stipulated that the land shall “be used as public recreational land 
under the Public Health Act 1875”. The 1906 Conveyance acts as the trust deed.  
It was amended by a scheme approved by the Charity Commission dated 19 
December 1983 which allowed an exchange of lands between the Trust and the 
Council whereby the site of the Salt Hill leisure facility was transferred to the Council 
by the Trust in exchange for other, nearby Council land. Slough Borough Council 
may create new bye-laws for the regulation of Salt Hill Park accordingly. 

 
5.2 The 1906 Conveyance sets out clearly that the property can only be used “solely 

for the purpose of encouraging and giving facilities for games and physical 
and athletic exercises calculated to promote the physical health of the young 
people of the district and not for the purpose of providing a promenade or 
mere pleasure ground or public resort” 

 
5.3 The Property was also conveyed subject to a public right of way over pathways 

traversing Salt Hill Park.  It was not likely that this originally included a vehicular 
right of way owing to the prohibition on access by vehicles (as set out in paragraph 
5.4 below).  However, vehicular rights of way will most likely now have become 
established owing to the long user. 
 

5.4 The bye-laws made in 1906 specifically prohibited access to the Salt Hill Park by 
vehicles other than motorbikes and tricycles.  There is a further prohibition on any 
variation to the means of access to and egress from the trust land.  The proposed 
widening of the access route is unlikely to constitute  a variation of the means of 
access to and egress from the park. However, it may require the consent of the 
Charity Commission if it is deemed to be a disposal of trust land. 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

  

 
Background 

 
5.5   On the 19th December 2016 Cabinet agreed to plans for the refurbishment of the 

leisure facility in Salt Hill Park, which includes provision for ten pin bowling, caving, 
trampolining and a large soft play facility, along with other activities, which 
contribute to tackling the inactivity and childhood obesity issues prevalent in the 
town.  
 

5.6 A planning application was submitted to the council for the improvement works to 
the Salt Hill leisure facility on 20th June 2017. The expected date for planning 
approval is 20th September 2017. 
 

 
5.7 There are proposals that will increase the car parking available on the site and 

officers are currently working up options for this. The additional car parking 
schemes will be covered in areas of Salt Hill Park not owned by the Trust. However 
access routes to the proposed parking areas are on Trust owned land. See 
appendix 1. 

  
5.8 With the possible increase in car journeys to the new leisure facility when it opens in 

June 2018 and the ongoing demand for parking for users of the park and the 
restaurant, safe access routes are paramount, for both cars and pedestrians. To 
accommodate this, improvements to the main entrance to the park from the Bath 
Road (A4) are required along with road widening to the main road access into the 
park. These proposed improvements are on Trust owned land and require the 
permission of trustees.   

  
5.9   Comments of Other Committees  

  
None. 

 

6. Conclusion  
 

Members are requested to agree to the improvement works in their capacity as 
trustees of the Salt Hill Playing Fields Trust.  

 

7. Appendices Attached  
 

Appendix 1 – Salt Hill Park map. 
 
8. Background Papers 
 
 None.  

Page 44



��������	
�������



���������������

��������	
�����	�
�������

������	��
���
���������P
a
g
e
 4

5



P
a
g
e
 4

6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:     Council  DATE: 25th July, 2017  
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Shabana Kauser 
(For all enquiries)  Senior Democratic Services Officer         

(01753) 787503 
 
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
MOTIONS SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 14 
 
The following motions have been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 14:- 

 

A) Provision of Legal Services    
 
(Moved by Councillor Strutton, seconded by Councillor Wright) 
 
“This Council resolves to fully evaluate options to enter into a merger or 
formalised agreement for the delivery of shared legal services with 
neighbouring boroughs and to include the provision of a shared Monitoring 
Officer to save taxpayer money in Slough.” 

B) Welfare Reform Act 2012: Spare Room Subsidy 

(Moved by Councillor Munawar, seconded by Councillor Hussain) 
 

“This Council calls on the new government to repeal the ‘spare room subsidy’, 
known as the bedroom tax.  
 
This Council therefore resolves to write to the government and opposition 
parties calling for the immediate repeal of this element of the Welfare Reform 
Act 2012 and in the meantime we will continue to lobby our MPs for their 
support.” 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council held on 18th May 2017
	5 Recommendation of the Slough Wellbeing Board from it's meeting held on 10 May 2017
	Annual Report

	6 Recommendation of the Cabinet from its meeting held on 17th July 2017
	7 Salt Hill Park  - Proposed Improvement Works
	Salt Hill Park Appendix 1

	8 To consider Motions submitted under procedure Rule 14.

